
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings post COVID-19 emergency 
orders, the City Council invites you to join and/or participate in a variety 
of ways:  Via computer Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, 

email and/or text!  See details on page 4. 

Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

August 9, 2021 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation – Ron Higey, Vestavia Hills Chaplain

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Approval Of The Agenda

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition

7. Proclamation – National Senior Citizens Day – August 21, 2021

8. Proclamation – Hike The Hill Month – September 2021

9. Proclamation – Day Of Prayer And Thanksgiving – August 24, 2021

10. City Manager’s Report

a. Presentation of FY 2022 General and Special Funds Budget to City Council

11. Councilors’ Reports

12. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director

13. Update of Community Spaces Projects – TCU Consulting

14. Approval Of Minutes – July 26, 2021 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

15. Resolution Number 5337 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2429 Altadena Road; Lot 2, Haynies

Addition To Ridge Forest; Keith And Taylor Cargal (Owners)   (public hearing)

16. Ordinance Number 3025 – Annexation – Overnight – 2429 Altadena Road; Lot 2, Haynies

Addition To Ridge Forest; Keith And Taylor Cargal (Owners)   (public hearing)

17. Resolution Number 5338 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2625 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4B, LB Lloyd

Subd; Deborah and Jack Standifer, (Owners)   (public hearing)

18. Ordinance Number 3026 – Annexation – Overnight – 2625 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4B, LB

Lloyd Subd; Deborah and Jack Standifer, (Owners)   (public hearing)

19. Resolution Number 5339 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2621 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4A, Gary and

Pam West Survey; Jordan Hoffman, (Owners)   (public hearing)



20. Ordinance Number 3027 – Annexation – Overnight – 2621 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4A, Gary

and Pam West Survey; Jordan Hoffman, (Owners)   (public hearing)

21. Ordinance Number 3028 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To

Execute And Deliver A Temporary Construction Easement For The Parkside Development

Project Located On Dolly Ridge Road Described As Lot 2, Hollis Crossings Survey  (public

hearing)

22. Resolution Number 5341 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend

Additional Funding For The Needed Renovations At Vestavia Hills Fire Station No. 3

(public hearing)

New Business 

23. Resolution Number 5342 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For S2A2, Inc., 
D/B/A Liquor Shop; Sunil Joshi, Executive (public hearing)

24. Resolution Number 5343 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For First Watch 
Restaurants, Inc., D/B/A First Watch Restaurant 389; Henry M. Hope III, Jay A Wolszczak 
and Christopher A. Tomasso, Executives  (public hearing)

25. Ordinance Number 3032 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A First Addendum To Agreement To Share Responsibilities (Joint 
Services Agreement) To Coordinate Overlapping Projects On Crosshaven Drive 

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

26. Ordinance Number 3031 – An Ordinance To Declare That The Present Condition Of A

Portion Of Oakview Lane Is In Such State Of Disrepair That It Endangers The Public

Health, Safety And Welfare Of Members Of The General Public; To Declare That The

Situation Is An Emergency; To Describe The Nature Of Said Emergency; To Authorize

And Direct The Repair Of Oakview Lane Without Advertising For Competitive Bids

Pursuant To The Authority Of Title 39-2-2(E), Code Of Alabama, 1975, At A Cost Not To

Exceed One Hundred Eighteen Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty-Two Dollars ($118,852.00);

To Authorize And Direct The City Manager And Mayor To Negotiate And To Execute And

Deliver A Construction Contract And Any And All Other Documents Necessary To Have

The Repair Work Performed And Completed    (public hearing)

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

27. Ordinance Number 3030 – Rezoning – 3164 Belwood Drive; Rezone From Vestavia Hills

R-5  (Multi-Family  Residential  District)  To  Vestavia  Hills  R-9  (Planned  Residential 

District) For Construction Of Five Townhomes; Elm Properties, Owners  (public hearing) 



28. Citizens Comments

29. Adjournment



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Due to the COVID-19 safety advice given by the ADPH, the City Council work sessions and 
meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you choose not to attend 
in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 

COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 

To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4555343275. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself by 
toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your name 
and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 

Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  
 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you

may use to raise a virtual hand
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants

TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 

To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 

TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 

If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 



WHEREAS,  throughout  our  history,  older  people  have  achieved  much  for  our  families, 
communities, and country; and 

WHEREAS,  with  improved  healthcare  and more  years  of  productivity,  older  citizens  are 
reinforcing  their historical  roles as  leaders and  sense of purpose as  individuals 
and as a Nation; and   

WHEREAS,  many  of  them  are  embarking  on  second  careers,  giving  younger  people  an 
example of responsibility, resourcefulness, competence, and determination; and  

WHEREAS,  more  than  11  million  senior  citizens  are  serving  as  volunteers  in  various 
programs and projects that benefit every sector of society; and 

WHEREAS,   we can best demonstrate our gratitude for the older seniors’ accomplishments 
by making sure that our communities enable them to participate to the  fullest 
and find the encouragement, acceptance, assistance, and services they need to 
continue to lead lives of independence and dignity; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City 
of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim August 21, 2021 as  

    NATIONAL SENIOR CITIZENS DAY 

which  is  recognized  annually  and was  authorized  and  requested  by  President 
Ronald  Reagan  in  1988  to  encourage  them  to  be  active  members  of  their 
community. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I  have  hereunto 
set my  hand  and  caused  the  Seal  of  the 
City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed this the 
9th day of August 2021. 

__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



WHEREAS,  Rotary  International  is  a  global  network  of  volunteers who  come  together  to 
make positive, lasting changes in communities; and    

WHEREAS,  the Vestavia Hills Rotary Club has been serving this community for  
over 50 years; and  

WHEREAS,  the Vestavia Hills Rotary Club  is  in  its  third decade of supporting Vestavia Hills 
City Schools and  the Parent Teacher Organization’s efforts of building stronger 
relationships with teachers, faculty and staff to support student education; and  

WHEREAS,  in  2020,  the  Vestavia Hills  Rotary  Club  created Hike  the Hill  as  a  sustainable 
community event that brings people together, benefits their overall health and 
well‐being, and celebrates and supports programs in our schools; and 

WHEREAS,   the Vestavia Hills Rotary Club, the Vestavia Hills City Schools and its PTOs greatly 
appreciate  the  support and generosity and  community partnerships with area 
businesses and merchants who enable Hike the Hill to be held; and 

WHEREAS,   the 2021 Hike the Hill event will be held from September 1st thru September 30th 
with additional neighborhood courses to include all areas of Vestavia Hills. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of 
Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim September 2021 as 

HIKE THE HILL MONTH 

in  Vestavia  Hills  and  earnestly  call  upon  our  residents  to  participate  in  this 
community event that supports our students and schools. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I  have  hereunto 
set my  hand  and  caused  the  Seal  of  the 
City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed this the 
9th day of August 2021. 

__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



WHEREAS,  prayer is our communication with the Heavenly Father; and  

WHEREAS,  it enables mankind to give thanks for the life we sometimes take for granted; and 

WHEREAS,  prayer seems to soften our sorrow and make our griefs and hardships bearable; 
and  

WHEREAS,  through prayer we can be prepared to become the instruments of His peace; and 

WHEREAS,   prayer  is a candle that can rekindle the  light that will repel the darkness  in our 
midst; and 

WHEREAS,   by our unity others may know that we are one with the Father and His peace; 
and    

WHEREAS,  only as we are filled with the power of God can we do the things the Lord wants 
of us in any area of our lives; and 

WHEREAS,   the annual Mayor’s Prayer Breakfast will be held Tuesday, August 24th at  the 
Vestavia Country Club. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the City of 
Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim August 24, 2021 as a 
special 

DAY OF PRAYER AND THANKSGIVING 

in  Vestavia  Hills  and  earnestly  call  upon  all  people  of  faith  and  goodwill  to 
support  this  spiritual  effort  so  that  together we may  offer  prayer,  praise  and 
thanksgiving. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I  have  hereunto 
set my  hand  and  caused  the  Seal  of  the 
City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed this the 
9th day of August 2021. 

__________________________________
______ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JULY 26, 2021 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  A number of staff and general 
public/audience members also attended virtually, via Zoom.com, following publication pursuant 
to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry 
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem* 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Umang Patel, Court Director/Acting City Clerk 
Jack Wakefield, Planner 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 

      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director* 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
       *present via Zoom or telephone 
 

Steve Dedmon, Vestavia Hills City Chaplain, led the invocation which was followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion of approval of the agenda as presented. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the agenda as presented was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 

Cook.  Roll call vote was, as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 2 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  

 
 Mr. Pierce introduced Mark Macoy, attorney for the Chamber of Commerce who was also 

attending the meeting tonight to represent the Chamber. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes updated the Council on the progress of the Cahaba Solid Waste Authority.  
He stated that two additional municipalities wish to join the Authority and appears as an 
agenda item to be considered tonight.  He indicated some of the discussions and noted that 
the cost factors to be considered by Hoover and later by Pelham are about the same that 
Vestavia Hills already uses.   They might consider thresholds of service if Pelham elects 
to use the services, some discounts might be received by using the Authority.  The 
preferred contractor appears to be AmWaste. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that the Board of Education has hired Myra Miles as the new athletic 
director.  Ms. Miles was formally with Hoover Board of Education and comes highly 
recommended.  Mrs. Cook also mentioned a new incident reporting system utilized by the 
Board.  She stated that the Board has all of the curriculum posted to their website so there 
is no question as to what is being taught.  August 10 will be the first day of school. She 
stated that there was a request to allow virtual schooling for all grades but that, so far, has 
not been accepted.  She noted that they are ready to pivot if needed.  

 Mr. Pierce urged everyone to please shop Vestavia Hills and explained how that helps to 
provide City services. 

 Mr. Weaver announced the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting will be held on 
August 12, 2021. 

 Mayor Curry stated that attendance at the last Park and Recreation meeting was up and 
that there were several comments made on Wald Park and the new pool.  There are more 
memberships this year than any previous year. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for approval of the following minutes:  July 12, 2021 (Regular 
Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes of July 12, 2021 (Regular Meeting) was by Mr. 

Weaver and seconded by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 3 
 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3023 
 

Ordinance Number 3023 – Conditional Use Approval – Conditional Use Approval For A 
Home Occupation; 4950 Reynolds Lane; Willie And Darlene S. Myers, Jr., 
Owners   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3023 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Weaver. 
 
Mr. Weaver explained that this is required for every home business in Liberty Park.  The 

Commission recommended approval on this request. 
 
Mayor Curry stated the applicant is an insurance adjuster. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3008-B 
  
Ordinance Number 3008-B – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 3008 And 

Ordinance Number 3008-A To Join Additional Municipalities In Formation 
Of The Cahaba Solid Waste Disposal Authority 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 3008-B was by Mr. Weaver and seconded 

by Mr. Pierce. 
 
Mayor Curry explained this Ordinance will add two additional cities:  Clanton and 

Homewood.  The Mayor also commended Mr. Downes for bringing AmWaste to our City and 
noted they are the preferred provider of this Board.  He stated that he is proud of Vestavia Hills 
being a leader on this issue. 

 
Mr. Downes clarified that other cities can join the Board.  But, to have the power to vote 

on the Board, the Ordinance requires modification to allow additional voting authority. 
 
Mr. Pierce asked about Jefferson County. 



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 4 
 

 
Mr. Downes stated that only cities can use this Authority.  However, residents of Jefferson 

County can have private contracts with AmWaste and directly pay for garbage services. 
 
There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor called for the question.  

Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and 
action of Resolution Numbers 5340 and Ordinance Number 3029. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action of 

Resolution Numbers 5334 and Ordinance 3029 by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. 
Cook. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5340 
 

Resolution Number 5340 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept A Quote 
From Mobile Communications America For Relocation Of A Weather Siren 
Located At Vestavia Hills Elementary Cahaba Heights    (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 5340 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Weaver. 
 
The Mayor explained that the siren needed to be relocated due to the construction around 

it. 
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else to further 

address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call 
vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
  



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 5 
 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 3029 

 
Ordinance Number 3029 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute An Agreement With Schoel Engineering For Hydrologic Consulting 
Services For A Stormwater Master Plan Project For The City   (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3029 was by Mr. Weaver and seconded by 

Mr. Pierce. 
 
Mr. Boones related the legalities of what cities can do and cannot do when it comes to 

stormwater issues within the City.  He related that public dollars can be spent by a municipality 
only when it is for a public purpose.  He explained the background of the City’s duties to maintain 
private infrastructure once it elects to do so, and referenced a Supreme Court ruling from 2007.  
He explained that if the City does work on public property that requires engineering services, the 
City must engage professional engineers to create a plan. This will give information and identify 
areas of concerns and help the City to develop future regulations concerning drainage in the City.   

 
Mr. Boone stated that, as a personal comment, this city is 70 years old.  He stated he has 

lived in Vestavia Hills for 53 years and has lived in the study area.  For the first 26 years, he lived 
on Comer Circle which is the lowest lot below the earthen dam at Vestavia Lake.  This property 
had a 25’ wide perennial stream which carries water downstream.  He stated that the last years, 
he has lived north of this area.   He stated that, between his two homes, sea level has increased 
more than 600’ between his home now and the home he had years ago, and he feels it is a great 
idea to study this area. 

 
Mr. Weaver stated that the master plan effort would identify problems within the City’s 

stormwater infrastructure. 
 
Mr. Downes stated this study concentrates on two basins.  He explained that, as 

Engineering has investigated various complaints and studied the infrastructure, they recommend 
a study of these basins would help to focus more clearly on the problem area.  He explained that 
earlier studies were not as focused.  The deficiencies might be in public areas or might be in 
private areas.  Ordinances may be needed to better manage these two basins. 

 
Mr. Weaver asked who will be heading up this study. 
 
Mr. Downes stated that Mr. Thomas with Schoel will be heading the effort. 

 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. Pierce stated that the earlier infrastructure simply was not enough to handle 

development that has happened in the last few years. 
 
Mr. Downes emphasized that this is a very focused effort on just two drainage basins. 



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 6 
 

 
Schoel Engineering explained the areas they will be focusing on and what type of 

recommendations they will make.  He indicated they are doing the same type of service for certain 
areas of Hoover also. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
Nolan Cesnick, 2132 Southwood Drive, asked about the timeframe for an action plan. 
 
Mr. Thomas stated that they anticipate the study to be completed in 5 to 6 weeks and then 

they will consult with City staff.  The entire study might take 8 to 10 weeks. 
 
There being no one else to further address the Council, the Mayor closed the public 

hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes    motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Resolution Number 5337 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2429 Altadena Road; Lot 2, Haynies 
Addition To Ridge Forest; Keith And Taylor Cargal (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3025 – Annexation – Overnight – 2429 Altadena Road; Lot 2, Haynies 
Addition To Ridge Forest; Keith And Taylor Cargal (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5338 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2625 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4B, LB Lloyd 
Subd; Deborah and Jack Standifer, (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3026 – Annexation – Overnight – 2625 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4B, LB Lloyd 
Subd; Deborah and Jack Standifer, (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5339 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2621 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4A, Gary and 
Pam West Survey; Jordan Hoffman, (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3027 – Annexation – Overnight – 2621 Red Bud Lane; Lot 4A, Gary and 
Pam West Survey; Jordan Hoffman, (Owners)   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 3028 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A Temporary Construction Easement For The Parkside Development 
Project Located On Dolly Ridge Road Described As Lot 2, Hollis Crossings Survey  (public 
hearing) 

 Resolution Number 5341 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend 
Additional Funding For The Needed Renovations At Vestavia Hills Fire Station No. 3  (public 
hearing) 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 



City Council Minutes 
July 26, 2021 

Page 7 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
 The Mayor explained that there’s a need for an Executive Session for the purchase/sale of 
property to last an estimated 30 minutes with no action taken after the session. He opened the 
floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to move into Executive Session for the purchase/sale of property to last an 

estimated 30 minutes was made by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Weaver asked Mr. Boone if it was appropriate to go into Executive Session for such 
a purpose.  Mr. Boone replied that it was. 
 
 At 6:50 the Council exited the Chamber and moved into Executive Session.  At 7:19 PM 
the Council re-entered the Chamber and the Mayor called the meeting back to order. 
 
 At 7:20 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5337 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5337 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated June 11, 2021, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 9th day of August, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News,

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

11th day of August, 2021. 

2. That on the 22nd day of November, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing 

the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

3. That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number

5337 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5337 
Page 2 

2429 Altadena Road 
Lot 2, Haynies Add to Ridge Forest 
Keith and Taylor Cargal, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5337 
Page 3 



2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2429  Altadena Road Property Address

====>   $                                                            214,700  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$21,470.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$441.21 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$617.26 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,058.47
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$324.20
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$176.05 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$441.21 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,117.51 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$1,558.72 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



2429 Altadena Road



Ordinance Number 3025 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3025 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Keith and Taylor Cargal dated 

June 11, 2021, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2429 Altadena Road 
Lot 2, Haynies Add to Ridge Forest 

Keith and Taylor Cargal 

SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 3025 
Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3025 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 9th day of August, 2021, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the 
Forest, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2021. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3025 
Page 3 



Resolution Number 5338 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5338 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated December 18, 2020, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 9th day of August, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News,

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

11th day of August, 2021. 

2. That on the 22nd day of November, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing 

the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

3. That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number

5338 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5338 
Page 2 

2625 Red Bud Lane 
Lot 4B, LB Lloyd Subd. 

Deborah and Jack Standifer, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5338 
Page 3 



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2625 Red Bud Lane Property Address

====>   $ 626,000  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$62,600.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,286.43 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,799.75 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$3,086.18
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$945.26
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$513.32 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,286.43 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$3,258.33 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$4,544.76 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



2625 Red Bud Lane



Ordinance Number 3026 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3026 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Deborah and Jack Standifer dated 

December 18, 2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2625 Red Bud Lane 
Lot 4B, LB Lloyd Subd. 

Deborah and Jack Standifer 

SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 3026 
Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3026 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 9th day of August, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2021. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3026 
Page 3 



Resolution Number 5339 
Page 1 

.RESOLUTION NUMBER 5339 

A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated January 19, 2021, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 9th day of August, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News,

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

11th day of August, 2021. 

2. That on the 22nd day of November, 2021, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a

public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition 

and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such 

hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing 

the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

3. That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number

5339 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5339 
Page 2 

2621 Red Bud Lane 
Lot 4A, Gary & Pam West Survey 

Jordan Hoffman, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5339 
Page 3 



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2621 Red Bud Lane Property Address

====>   $ 515,000  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$51,500.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,058.33 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,480.63 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,538.95
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$777.65
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$422.30 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,058.33 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,680.58 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,738.90 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



2621 Red Bud Lane



Ordinance Number 3027 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3027 

AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Jordan Hoffman dated January 19, 

2020, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits. 

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2621 Red Bud Lane 
Lot 4A, Gary & Pam West Survey 

Jordan Hoffman, Owner 

SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 3027 
Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3027 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 9th day of August, 2021, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the 
Forest, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2021. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3027 
Page 3 



ORDINANCE NUMBER 3028 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT TO GRANT A 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT FOR PARKSIDE AT 
DOLLY RIDGE, LOT 2, HOLLIS CROSSINGS, VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA 

WHEREAS, Dolly Ridge Development, LLC (“DRD”) owns a parcel of real estate 

abutting Dolly Ridge Road, more particularly described as Lot 2, Hollis Crossings as recorded in 

Map Book 242, Page 54 in the office of the Judge of Probate, Jefferson County, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, DRD has requested a Temporary Construction Easement (“TCE”) from the 

City which grants DRD a TCE over, on and across the City property for development of the 

Parkside project as detailed in a drawing by MBA Engineers dated June 11, 2021, a copy of which 

is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3028 as if written 

fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City Attorney has reviewed the TCE and has recommended revisions in 

his letter dated July 9, 2021, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated 

into this Ordinance Number 3028 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the revised TCE agreement is marked as Exhibit C, attached to and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3028 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, feel it is in the best 

public interest to grant said TCE. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the TCE as

detailed in the attached Exhibit C upon receipt of documentation as detailed in the attached

Exhibit C; and

2. This Ordinance Number 3028 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

approval following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.



ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



06021976.4

EXHIBIT 2 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 3028



 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT (CITY) 

A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASMENT LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 
1/4 OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 2 WEST, CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, JEFFERSON 
COUNTY, ALABAMA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT A 2” IRON PIPE FOUND AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 2 HOLLIS 
CROSSING SUBDIVISION (LOT 2) ON THE EASTERN 50 FOOT RIGHT‐OF‐WAY FOR DOLLY RIDGE 
ROAD THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 06 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 142.53 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERN PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 2, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 29.45 FEET TO A 
PIN, THENCE SOUTH 19 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 8.23 FEET TO 
A PIN, THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 36 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 71.62 FEET 
TO A POINT, THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 34 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 
132.47 FEET TO A POINT, THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 02 SECONDS WEST A 
DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERN PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 2 AND LOT 3, 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 146.84 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

ALL OF SAID TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LIES IN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 
22, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 2 WEST AND CONTAINS 0.236 ACRES (10236 SQUARE FEET), 
MORE OR LESS. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3028



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3028



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3028



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3028



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3028



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3028



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3028



06021976.4

This instrument was prepared by: 
Hannah Dunn 
Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C. 
1901 Sixth Avenue North, Suite 1700 
Birmingham, AL 35203 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 
(“Agreement”), is made and entered into on this the _________ day of July, 2021 by and between 
Dolly Ridge Holdings, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“DRH”) and the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (“City”).   

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Dolly Ridge Holdings, LLC is a limited liability company, organized, existing 
and operating in good standing pursuant to the laws of the State of Alabama (“DRH”); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is a municipal corporation, organized, 
existing and operating pursuant to the laws of the State of Alabama (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, DRH owns the real estate and improvements referred to as Parcel 2, which is 
more particularly described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference as though set out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the City owns the real estate and improvements referred to as Parcel 3, which is 
more particularly described in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference as though set out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the City is willing to grant to DRH a temporary construction easement over, 
on, under and along Parcel 3 in order to enable DRH to complete certain improvements on Parcel 2; 
and 

WHEREAS, Parcel 2 and Parcel 3 (identified as “(3) Temporary Construction Easement”) 
are accurately shown on the map attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 2 and is incorporated herein by 
reference as though set out fully herein; 

WHEREAS, DRH and the City wish to reduce their agreement to writing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual covenants hereinafter 
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, DRH and City hereby mutually covenant and agree 
as follows: 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 2 

06021976.4

I. RECITALS

The recitals set forth in the premises above are hereby incorporated into this Agreement for
Temporary Construction Easement (“Agreement”) by reference as though set out fully herein. 

II. MAP SHOWING PARCEL 2 AND PARCEL 3

The map marked as Exhibit 2 and attached hereto shows the location of Parcel 2 and Parcel 3. 

Parcel 2 is owned by Dolly Ridge Holdings, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company 
(“DRH”).  Parcel 3 is owned by the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation 
(“City”). 

III. EXHIBITS

  NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

  1 Legal description of Parcel 2. 
  1 Legal description of Parcel 3. 
  2 Map showing Parcel 2 and Parcel 3. 

Exhibits 1 and 2 are attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by reference as 
though set out fully herein. 

IV. GRANT OF TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

The City hereby grants and conveys unto DRH and DRH’s employees, agents, contractors,
subcontractors and licensees a temporary construction easement on, over and along Parcel 3 (also 
referred to herein as the “TCE property”) for equipment and materials storage, grading, staging and 
ingress/egress for the purpose of allowing DRH to develop and construct improvements on Parcel 2 
(the “TCE”). 

A. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES:  DRH, for itself and all its other servants, agents,
employees, contractors, subcontractors and licensees, shall utilize best management practices in the 
use of this temporary construction easement and shall otherwise comply in all respects with any and 
all statutes, ordinances, code provisions, rules, regulations, requirements and directives (collectively, 
“governmental requirements”) of any federal, state, county, city or quasi-governmental agency, 
bureaus, departments, divisions or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction of any portion of 
Parcel 3. 

B. TERM:  This temporary construction easement granted herein shall automatically
terminate on the date which is the earlier of:  (a) eighteen (18) months from the date of this 
Agreement; or (b) the completion of the construction on Parcel 2. 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 3 

06021976.4

V. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

 A. Parcel 2:  DRH shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and upkeep of
Parcel 2. 

B. Parcel 3:  The City shall be solely responsible for the maintenance, repair and upkeep
of Parcel 3. 

VI. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

DRH and City shall at all times exercise its rights hereunder in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state and local statutes, regulations, ordinances, rules, judicial decisions, 
governmental permits and approvals and all other laws now or hereafter in effect. 

VII. BENEFITS

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their
successors and assigns and the rights and obligations and benefits and burdens granted and imposed 
hereby shall be covenants which run with the land and shall benefit Parcel 2 owned by DRH and 
burden Parcel 3 owned by the City and the successors in title thereto of each of the parties. 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS

A. GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties
hereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama.  The 
jurisdiction and venue for the resolution of any dispute shall be in Jefferson County, Alabama. 

B. BINDING AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

C. SURVIVAL:  All representations and warranties of this Agreement shall survive the
execution and delivery, as shall any covenants for performance after the recording of this instrument. 

D. TIME OF THE ESSENCE:  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

E. NO WAIVER:  The failure of either party to exercise any rights under this Agreement
shall not constitute a waiver of any right, nor excuse the other party’s full performance.  No express 
waiver of any matter shall affect any other matter under this Agreement.  Express waivers are only 
effective if in writing. 

F. CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS:  Descriptive headings are for convenience only and shall
not control or affect the meaning or construction of any provision.  Any ambiguities of this 
Agreement shall be construed fairly and equitably regardless of the participation of either party in 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 4 

06021976.4

drafting this Agreement.  The reference in terms to gender and number shall be modified as may be 
appropriate. 

G. SEVERABILITY:  In case of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall for any
reason be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction in any respect, 
the remaining provisions shall remain in effect and the Agreement be performed in a fair and 
equitable manner as to any uncertainties arising from the unenforceable provisions.   

H. DATES:  If any date provided in this Agreement falls on a Saturday, Sunday or
holiday, the date shall be the next business day. 

I. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in 
any number of counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which shall constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 

J. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This written Agreement contains the entire agreement
between the parties, incorporating all prior agreements, and may only be amended in writing 
executed by both parties. 

IX. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

DRH and City recognize and mutually agree that DRH will enter into a written Construction
Contract with a Contractor properly licensed within the meaning of Title 34-8-1, Code of Alabama, 
1975 (the “Contractor”), and its subcontractors for the construction of the improvements for the 
development of the Parkside project. 

DRH and City agree that any and all contracts entered into by and between DRH and a 
Contractor shall include the following terms, provisions and conditions: 

A. LIABILITY INSURANCE:  The Contractor shall carry Manufacturer’s and Contractor’s
General Comprehensive Liability and Public Liability Insurance with limits of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00), per person, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000,00), per occurrence, to cover and 
protect DRH, its members, servants, agents, employees or representatives, the Contractor and its 
subcontractors against claims or injury to or death of one or more than one person because of 
accidents which may occur or result from operations under the contract; such insurance shall cover 
the use of any and all equipment, including but not limited to machinery, tractors, rollers, mixers, 
motor vehicles and other related equipment necessary to perform the work and installations and 
embraced in this contract. 

The Contractor shall carry, during the life of this contract, property damage insurance in the 
amount of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) to protect it and its 
subcontractors from claims for property damage which might arise from the work performed under 
this contract. 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 5 

06021976.4

Before commencing work, the Contractor shall submit evidence of the coverages required 
above to DRH for review and approval. Such insurance shall be carried with financially responsible 
insurance companies, licensed in the state and approved by DRH and shall be kept in full force and 
effect until the Contractor's work is accepted by the City Engineering and Building Departments. 
Contracts of insurance (covering all operations under this contract) which expire before the 
Contractor's work is accepted by the City shall be renewed and evidence of such renewal shall be 
submitted to the DRH for its approval. 

B. ADDITIONAL INSUREDS:  The Contractor shall cause all of the insurance policy
coverages described in Section IX-A of the Contract above (except for the Worker's Compensation 
coverages) to include: 

1. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and its Mayor, City Manager, individual
City Council members, servants, agents, employees or representatives as additional insureds for 
claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 
Contractor’s operations on the TCE property; and 

2. The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and its Mayor, City Manager, individual
City Council members, servants, agents, employees or representatives as additional insureds for 
claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions during the 
Contractor's completed operations on the TCE property; and 

3. The insurance policy coverages shall state that these coverages shall be
primary insurance for the additional insureds; and 

4. Contain no exclusions of the additional insureds relative to job accidents; and

5. The policies must be on an “occurrence” basis.

C. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION:  The Contractor shall carry Worker's Compensation
insurance for all of its employees and those of its subcontractors engaged in the work at the site in 
accordance with the State of Alabama Worker's Compensation Law.  This insurance coverage 
provided by the Contractor under the Worker's Compensation Act shall provide protection from any 
and all claims for bodily injury, death or property damage, which may arise from the performance of 
any servant, agent, employee or other representative of Contractor or its subcontractors under this 
contract.  Certificates of insurance issued by competent insurance companies qualified and licensed 
to do business in the State of Alabama and approved by DRH evidencing that all of said 
subcontractors of the Contractor are covered by said Worker's Compensation insurance coverage and 
furnished to the Contractor and DRH by the individual subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 
this section. 

D. INDEMNITY:  The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City, its Mayor,
City Manager, individual City Council members, servants, agents, employees and representatives 
from any and all claims, demands, controversies, actions, causes of action, liabilities of action, 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 6 

06021976.4

lawsuits, liabilities, damages and losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney fees, 
arising out of or resulting from property damage, personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged to 
have been suffered by any person as a result for work performed under this contract by Contractor, a 
subcontractor and anyone directly or indirectly employed by them.  This indemnification shall 
extend to all claims, damages, losses and expenses for injury or damage to adjacent or neighboring 
property, or persons injured thereon, that arise out of, relate to or result from performance of the 
Work. 

E. RESTORATION:  DRH shall promptly repair and replace any real property owned by
the City, including without limitation, the TCE property, and any landscaping or other improvements 
thereto, which may be damaged or destroyed in connection with the exercise of the TCE by any of 
the DRH parties.  Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary herein, upon expiration 
of the TCE, DRH shall promptly restore the TCE property to substantially the condition of the TCE 
property as of the date of this Agreement. 

[Signature page(s) follow(s)] 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 7 

06021976.4

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, 
and Dolly Ridge Holdings, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, have hereunto caused this 
Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement to be executed by their duly authorized officers 
and their respective seals to be affixed hereto as of the date first above written. 

CITY: 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

By __________________________________________ 
Ashley C. Curry 
Its Mayor 

By __________________________________________ 
Jeffrey D. Downes 
Its City Manager 

ATTESTED  

By ___________________________________ 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 8 

06021976.4

DRH: 
DOLLY RIDGE HOLDINGS, LLC 
An Alabama Limited Liability Company 

By __________________________________________ 
__________________ 
Its _______________ 

ATTESTED: 

By ___________________________________ 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public, in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that _________________________________, whose name as ________________________ 
of Dolly Ridge Holdings, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, is signed to the foregoing 
Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before 
me on this day that being informed of the contents of the contract, he in his capacity as such and 
with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said Dolly Ridge Holdings, 
LLC on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of August, 2021. 

__________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
____________________ 
SEAL 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 9 

06021976.4

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Ashley C. Curry, whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement, 
and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents 
of the instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for 
and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of August, 2021. 

_____________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:  
___________________ 
SEAL 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement for Temporary 
Construction Easement and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 
informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the 
same voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of August, 2021. 

_____________________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:  
___________________ 
SEAL 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 10 

06021976.4

EXHIBIT 1 

Parcel 2 – DOLLY RIDGE HOLDINGS, LLC (“DRH”) PROPERTY 

Lot 2 of the map and plat of Hollis Crossings as recorded in Map Book 242, Page 54 in the 
Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Parcel 3 – CITY PROPERTY (Temporary Construction Easement Area) 

A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASMENT LYING IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 2 WEST, CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT A 2” IRON PIPE FOUND AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 2 
HOLLIS CROSSING SUBDIVISION (LOT 2) ON THE EASTERN 50 FOOT RIGHT-OF-
WAY FOR DOLLY RIDGE ROAD THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 06 
SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 142.53 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERN 
PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 2, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 29.45 
FEET TO A PIN, THENCE SOUTH 19 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST A 
DISTANCE OF 8.23 FEET TO A PIN, THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 36 
SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 71.62 FEET TO A POINT, THENCE SOUTH 21 
DEGREES 22 MINUTES 34 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 132.47 FEET TO A POINT, 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 02 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 50.00 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERN PROPERTY LINE OF LOT 2 AND LOT 3, 
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 
146.84 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

ALL OF SAID TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT LIES IN THE NORTHWEST 
1/4 OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 22 SOUTH, RANGE 2 WEST AND CONTAINS 0.236 
ACRES (10236 SQUARE FEET), MORE OR LESS. 



Agreement for Temporary Construction Easement  
Page 11 

06021976.4

EXHIBIT 2 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5341 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXPEND 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE NEEDED RENOVATIONS AT 
VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE STATION NO. 3 

WHEREAS, needed renovations were identified at the Vestavia Hills Fire Station No. 

3; the scope of the work to update and separate the facilities into two private bathrooms as 

the restroom facilities were original to the building constructed in 1988; and 

WHEREAS, the surplus funds in Capital Projects Fund #20 allocated $26,000 for said 

renovations/repairs; and 

WHEREAS, the construction market has experienced significant changes in the past 12 

months and the cost of repairs has risen approximately $12,750 in order to cover the complete 

price of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Manager feel it is in the best public interest to 

repair/renovation Vestavia Hills Fire Station No. 3 as requested. 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend an additional $12,750 from the City’s

Capital Project funds to be coupled with the existing funding from the Capital Projects

Fund surplus funds allocated for said project, for a total not to exceed $38,750.00; and

2. This Resolution Number 5341 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of August, 2021.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Serving Since 1951 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM:  

DATE: 

RE: 

Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Marvin Green, Fire Chief 

July 19, 2021 

Additional Appropriation 

Stn #3 

In the Capital Projects Fund #20 in surplus funds, the VHFD has $26,000 to remodel the bathroom 
facilities at Station #3.  The facilities are original to the building when it was constructed in 1988.  
The scope of the work is to update and separate the facilities into two private bathrooms.  

Unfortunately, the market has changed significantly in the last 12 months. The lowest price we have 
been able to obtain for the work is $38,750. We are requesting an additional appropriation of $12,750 
from the City’s Capital Projects Fund #20, to cover the price increase for the project. 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5341



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5342 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 
FOR S2A2, INC., D/B/A LIQUOR SHOP; SUNIL 
JOSHI, EXECUTIVE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for S2A2, Inc., d/b/a Liquor Shop, located at 4851 Cahaba River Road, 

Suite 125, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the Off-Premise sale of 011- Lounge Retail Liquor 

- Class II (Package); Sunil Joshi, executive.

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5342



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5342



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5342



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5343 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 
FOR FIRST WATCH RESTAURANTS, INC., D/B/A 
FIRST WATCH RESTAURANT 389; HENRY M. 
HOPE III, JAY A. WOLSZCZAK AND 
CHRISTOPHER A. TOMASSO, EXECUTIVES 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for First Watch Restaurants, Inc., d/b/a First Watch Restaurant 389, located 

at 700 Montgomery Highway, Suite 188, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the On-Premise sale 

of 020-Restaurant Retail Liquor; Henry M. Hope III, Jay A. Wolszczak and Christopher 

A. Tomasso, executives.

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk



Exhibit Resolution No. 5343



Exhibit Resolution No. 5343



Exhibit Resolution No. 5343



Ordinance Number 3032 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3032 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A FIRST ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT 
TO SHARE RESPONSIBILITIES (JOINT SERVICES AGREEMENT) TO 
COORDINATE OVERLAPPING PROJECTS ON CROSSHAVEN DRIVE 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2921 authorizing the An Ordinance Authorizing The 

Mayor And City Manager To Enter Into An Intergovernmental Agreement With Jefferson County 

Commission In Order To Share Responsibilities For Utility Relocation For Jefferson County 

Project No. 37-18-099 TOPICS, Phase VIII (STPBH9802(88)); Crosshaven Drive From Bearden 

Court To Green Valley Road; and 

WHEREAS, a First Addendum to Agreement to Share Responsibilities (Joint Service 

Agreement) has been submitted to allow the City and Jefferson County to coordinate overlapping 

projects and reduce time, effort and expense of work in the Crosshaven Drive public works project, 

a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 

3032 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept said 

addendum and authorize the Mayor and City Manager to execute and deliver the addendum. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a First

Addendum to Agreement to Share Responsibilities (Joint Service Agreement) as detailed

in the attached Exhibit A; and

2. This Ordinance Number 3032 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

posting/publication as required by Alabama law.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 9th day of August, 2021.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3032 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3032



Ordinance No. 3031 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3031 

AN ORDINANCE TO DECLARE THAT THE PRESENT CONDITION OF 
A PORTION OF OAKVIEW LANE IS IN SUCH STATE OF DISREPAIR 
THAT IT ENDANGERS THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND 
WELFARE OF MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL PUBLIC; TO DECLARE 
THAT THE SITUATION IS AN EMERGENCY; TO DESCRIBE THE 
NATURE OF SAID EMERGENCY; TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE 
REPAIR OF OAKVIEW LANE WITHOUT ADVERTISING FOR 
COMPETITIVE BIDS PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF TITLE 39-
2-2(e), CODE OF ALABAMA, 1975, AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED ONE
HUNDRED EIGHTEEN THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED FIFTY-TWO
DOLLARS ($118,852.00); TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE CITY
MANAGER AND MAYOR TO NEGOTIATE AND TO EXECUTE AND
DELIVER A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND ANY AND ALL
OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO HAVE THE REPAIR WORK
PERFORMED AND COMPLETED.

THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 3031 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 9th day of August, 2021. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Oakview Lane is a public road in the Cahaba Heights community, which 

said public road is owned by the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, a portion of Oakview Lane is in such a state of disrepair that it endangers 

the public health, safety and welfare of members of the general public; and 

WHEREAS, municipalities in the State of Alabama are authorized to spend public funds 

for the purpose of constructing, improving and repairing public streets and roads pursuant to the 

authority of Title 11-48-4, Code of Alabama, 1975, and Title 11-49-80, Code of Alabama, 1975, 

and have a legal duty to exercise ordinary and reasonable care to keep its streets and roads in a 

reasonably safe condition for travel.  City of Tallassee v. Harris, 431 So.2d 1177 (1983); and 

WHEREAS, Title 39-2-1(6), Code of Alabama, 1975, defines a public works project as 

follows: 

“(6)  PUBLIC WORKS.  The construction, installation, 
repair, renovation, or maintenance of public buildings, structures, 
sewers, waterworks, roads, curbs, gutters, side walls, bridges, 
docks, underpasses, and viaducts as well as any other improvement 
to be constructed, installed, repaired, renovated, or maintained on 
public property and to be paid, in whole or in part, with public 
funds or with financing to be retired with public funds in the form 
of lease payments or otherwise.”; and 



Ordinance No. 3031 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, two of the primary requirements of the public works law in Alabama are 

that before entering into any contract for a public works project involving an amount in excess 

of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00), the awarding authority shall advertise for sealed bids 

(Title 39-2-2(a), Code of Alabama, 1975) and the contract shall be awarded to the lowest 

responsible and responsive bidder (Title 39-2-6(a), Code of Alabama, 1975); and 

WHEREAS, Ballentine Law Dictionary defines the term “emergency” as a “pressing 

necessity, a situation calling for immediate action or remedy”; and 

WHEREAS, Title 39-2-2(e), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides as follows: 

“(e) In case of an emergency affecting public health, 
safety, or convenience, as declared in writing by the awarding 
authority, setting forth the nature of the danger to the public health, 
safety, or convenience which would result from delay, contracts 
may be let to the extent necessary to meet the emergency without 
public advertisement.  The action and the reasons for the action 
taken shall immediately be made public by the awarding authority 
upon request.”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the situation on Oakview 

Lane constitutes an “emergency” within the meaning of the Alabama Competitive Bid Law at 

Title 39-2-2(e), Code of Alabama, 1975, because, if Oakview Lane is not repaired without delay, 

then in such event it is likely that motorists may be injured and motor vehicles damaged or 

destroyed; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost to repair Oakview Lane, as determined by the City 

Engineer, is as follows: 

Oakview Lane, Drainage Pipe Replacement Near 4216 
Estimated Project Costs, Updated 7/30/2021 

Contracted labor, equipment and project coordination $  83,552.00 
 City supplied materials: 

Pipe $  25,000.00 
Stone backfill       5,000.00 
Concrete       3,300.00 
Grates       1,500.00 
Rebar           500.00 

Estimated Material Costs     35,300.00 
Total Estimated Project Costs $118,852.00; and 



Ordinance No. 3031 
Page 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

I. RECITALS:  The recitals set forth in the premises above are hereby incorporated

into this Ordinance Number 3031 by reference as though set out fully herein. 

II. EXHIBIT:  A copy of Memorandum dated July 30, 2021 from City Engineer

Christopher Brady to City Manager Jeff Downes (consisting of four pages) estimating the repair 

cost in the amount of $118,852.00 is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 1 and is incorporated 

into this Ordinance Number 3031 by reference as though set out fully herein. 

III. EMERGENCY DECLARED:  The City Council finds, determines and declares

that Oakview Lane, in its present state of disrepair, constitutes an “emergency” situation as 

contemplated by Title 39-2-2(e), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

IV. STATE OF EMERGENCY:  In accordance with the requirements of Title 39-

2-2(e), Code of Alabama, 1975, the City Council hereby states and documents its reasons for

taking the actions authorized by the enactment of this Ordinance Number 3031

A. To delay the work to repair Oakview Lane in order to advertise for sealed

bids would be detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the members of the general public. 

B. The emergency situation must be repaired promptly in order to reduce, to

the greatest extent possible, personal injuries and property damages. 

C. Delay in the repair of Oakview Lane could possibly result in liability to

the City pursuant to Title 11-47-190, Code of Alabama, 1975. 

D. Under the circumstances, immediate repair of Oakview Lane is the only

and best action for the City to take. 

 E. Time is of the essence.

V. EXPENDITURE OF PUBLIC FUNDS:  The City Manager is hereby authorized

to spend an amount of City funds not to exceed One Hundred Eighteen Thousand Eight Hundred 

Fifty-two Dollars ($118,852.00) for the repair of Oakview Lane. 

VI. NEGOTIATION, EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACT AND OTHER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:   

A. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to negotiate a

Construction Contract for and on behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills for the performance of work 

and purchase of materials necessary to complete the repair of Oakview Lane. 



Ordinance No. 3031 
Page 4 

B. The City Manager and Mayor are hereby authorized and directed to

execute and deliver, for and on behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills, the Construction Contract, 

the contract documents and any and all other documents necessary for the repair work on 

Oakview Lane to be performed and completed.  In addition, the City Manager is hereby 

authorized and directed to take any and all other actions that may be necessary for the 

performance and completion of said repair work. 

VII. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE:  If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance

shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect 

notwithstanding such holding. 

VIII. ARTICLE AND SECTIONS HEADINGS:  The article and section headings

and captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be considered a 

part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

IX. ENACTMENT:  This Ordinance Number 3031 is approved and adopted pursuant

to the authority of Title 11-42-2(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, because of the reasons set forth 

herein. 

X. EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance Number 3031 shall become effective

immediately upon adoption and posting as required by law. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this 9th day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

OFFICE OF CITY ENGINEER 
INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMO 

July 30, 2021 

To: Jeff Downes, City Manager 

CC: Brian Davis, Director of Public Services 
Lori Beth Kearley, Assistant City Engineer 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

From: Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

RE: emergency drainage repair on Oakview Lane 

We have had a section of drainage pipe partially collapse along the edge of Oakview Lane.  See 
attached picture and map.  This is creating a roadway hazard and as additional rains occur may soon 
make the roadway impassable. 

I am requesting an emergency declaration to assist us with scheduling this repair as soon as possible. 

Please see attached estimated costs associated with contractor assistance to dig and replace this section 
of pipe. 

Please let me or Lori Beth know if questions, 

Sincerely, 
-Christopher

Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3021



Oakview Lane, drainage pipe replacement near 4216
Estimated project costs, updated 7/30/21

Contracted labor, equipment, and 

project coordination 83,552.00$    

City supplied materials

pipe $25,000.00

stone backfill $5,000.00

concrete $3,300.00

grates $1,500.00

rebar $500

Estimated material costs $35,300.00

Total estimated project costs 118,852.00$  

Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3021



Area of pipe collapse 

Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3021



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3021



Exhibit - Ordinance 3021



Exhibit - Ordinance 3021



Ordinance Number 3030 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3030 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
5 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-5 (multi-family 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3164 Belwood Drive 
Elm Properties, Owners 

More particularly described as follows: 

A tract of land located in the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 22, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, more fully described 
as following commencing at the Northeast corner of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Northeast ¼ of Section 22, Township 18 South, Rrnge 2 West; thence run 
west along the north line of said ¼ - ¼ line for a distance of 375.00 feet to 
a found #4 rebar said rebar being the point of beginning; thence continue 
along said course for a distance of 276.97 feet to the center line of Belwood 
drive; thence turn an interior angle of 27°38’17” to the right and run along 
the arc of a curve to the left for an arc distance of 236.03 with a chord 
distance of 228.28 feet said curve having a Delta angle of 51°08’32” and a 
radius of 264.43 feet to the center line intersection of Belwood Drive and A 
Autumn Lane; thence turn an interior angle of 055°35’18” to the right and 
run a distance of 78.90 feet to a point in the center line of Belwood drive; 
thence turn an interior angle of 85°04’10” to the right and run a distance of 
110.60 feet to the point of beginning. Less and except any part in the right 
of way. 

. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of August, 2021. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3030 
Page 2 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3030 is a true and correct 
copy of such 23rd day of August, 2021, as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2021. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3030 
Page 3 



EXISTING
PAVEMENT

22
.1

5'

20
.1

1'

18
.6

2'

26
.1

8'

26
.2

4'

22
.7

3'

COMMON PARKING
STORM WATER MGT AREA

PERVIOUS PAVERS

44.64' 21.33' 21.33' 21.33' 30.8'111.9'

20' SETBACK

12' SETBACK FROM
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

5' SIDEWALK
3' GRASS STRIP

R15'

R
15

'

45.8'

21.4' 21.38' 21.36' 35.52

8' PRIVACY FENCE

BELWOOD DR

BELW
OOD DR

8' PRIVACY
FENCE

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

DETENTION FACILITY
75 LF OF 30" STORM PIPE.

CONTROL STRUCTURE

15" RCP DISCHARGE PIPE REQ'D
SLOPE PAVED HEADWALL

250' SIGHT DIST NW

350' SIGHT DIST SE

24.0'

10' BUFFER WITH FENCE

40
' R

O
W

75
.1

0

85
.0

8

86
.9

4

88
.3

4

89
.5

6 90.57'

3608 SF 1835 SF 1869 SF 1898 SF 2930 SF

5034 SF

PERVIOUS
PAVERS

DRAWN:

SCALE:

SHEET

JAM III

MCO
CHECKED:

21ELM01

DATE:

JOB NO:

FILE NAME:REZONING 

31
64

 B
E

LW
O

O
D

 D
R

V
E

S
TA

V
IA

 H
IL

LS
, A

L

V
E

S
TA

V
IA

 H
IL

LS
, A

L

MT
R

M
TT

R
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
, I

N
C

.
C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

S
-L

A
N

D
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
O

R
S

25
00

 S
O

U
TH

LA
K

E
 P

A
R

K
, S

U
IT

E
 1

00
, H

O
O

V
E

R
, A

L 
35

24
4

TE
LE

P
H

O
N

E
 (2

05
) 3

20
-0

11
4

SCHEMATIC No. 5

07.14.21

C 1
1"  = 10.00'

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK DETAIL ( NTS )

PE / LS No. 17054

MTTR ENGINEERS, INC.
2500 SOUTHLAKE PARK, SUITE 100, HOOVER, AL 35244

TELEPHONE (205) 320-0114

ELLIOT PIKE ,CONTACT
ELM CONSTRUCTION, LLC

4100 AUTUMN LN #104, VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243
TELEPHONE (205) 368-3109

JOSEPH A. MILLER, III ENGINEER

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R

13. SITE BENCHMARK MANHOLE IN BELWOOD DRIVE

16. ELECTRICAL POWER BY AL. POWER COMPANY.
15. FIRE PROTECTION PLAN: FIRE HYDRANTS WILL PLACED AS DIRECTED BY CITY FIRE CHIEF.

17. UTILITY COMPANY SHALL OBTAIN A PERMIT FROM CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS BEFORE INSTALLLING 
    UTILITIES IN THE STREET. ALL METERS, VALVES, AND OTHER ITEMS WHICH PROJECT ABOVE GROUND LINE
    SHALL BE LOCATED OUTSIDE THE PAVING LIMITS AND NOT HAMPER MAINTENCE OPERATIONS OF THE STREET 

18.(PROPOSED)  PROPERTY IS TO BE ZONED R-9 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

14. WATER PROVIDED BY BIRMINGHAM  WATER WORKS BOARD.

    AND THE RIGHT OF WAY.

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LATEST 

2. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING A PROPER TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN FOR PUBLIC SAFETY
   ADJACENT TO CONSTRUCTION SITE. TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
   MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, LATEST EDITION.
3. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 72 HOURS BEFORE BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.
4. ALL DISTURBED SHALL BE SEEDED & MULCHED AS PER AL. D.O.T. STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.
5. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DONE IN A LOGICAL SEQUENCE SO TO MINIMIZE THE AREA OF EXPOSED 

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY.
7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL REQUIRED PERMITS.
   NO WORK IS TO BEGIN UNTIL COPIES OF ALL REQUIRED PERMITS IS FURNISHED TO THE OWNER.
8. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO INSTALL ALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES BEFORE ANY CONSTRUCTION BEGINS. 
   SUCH DEVICES SHALL BE INSPECTED AFTER EVERY 0.50" RAINFALL AND BE REPAIRED AND MAINTAINED

9. ALL DISTURBED GROUND TO BE LEFT INACTIVE FOR LONGER THAN 13 DAYS SHALL BE STABILIZED BY SEEDING, OR SODDING

    UTILITIES LOCATED BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.

10. ANY SEDIMENT REACHING THE ROADWAY SHALL BE REMOVED BY STREET CLEANING, AND NOT BY FLUSHING,

11. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES FROM UTILITY RECORDS. CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE ALL 

12. SANITARY SEWER SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS OF CITY OF JEFFERSON COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

   SOIL AT ANY ONE TIME.

   UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED.

   BEFORE THE END OF EACH DAY.

19. ALL EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, SANITARY SEWERS, 

SERVE BOTH WITHIN AND WITHOUT THIS SUBDIVISION. VESTAVIA HILLS WILL MAINTAIN 
STORM SEWERS AND OPEN STORM DITCHES AND MAY BE USED FOR SUCH PURPOSES TO 

NOT MAINTAIN STORM SEWER SYSTEM. ALL STORM SEWERS NOT IN ROW WILL BE MAINTAINED BY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION.
20. Survey by Ray Weygand, PLS.

      OF VESTAVIA HILLS, AL.  STANDARDS AND SPECS.

No. 17054
PROFESSIONAL

& LAND SURVEYOR

07.14.21

21. SITE WILL HAVE 0.5 ACRES DISTURBED AREA, NO ADEM STORM WATER PERMIT REQUIRED.



T
IT

LE

20
5.
22

3.8
60

2
ch

ad
@

cm
br

ya
nt

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e.
co

m

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
IS

 T
HE

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
OF

C.
M.

BR
YA

NT
 A

RC
HI

TE
CT

UR
E,

 L
.L

.C
.

AN
D 

MA
Y 

NO
T 

BE
 R

EP
RO

DU
CE

D 
OR

 A
LT

ER
ED

W
IT

HO
UT

 P
ER

MI
SS

IO
N.

SH
E
E
T

D
A

T
E
S

03
/23

/21
CO

NC
EP

TU
AL

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
04

/02
/21

RE
VI

SE
D 

CO
NC

EP
T 

SI
TE

AN
D 

BU
ILD

IN
G

04
/04

/21
RE

VI
SE

D 
SI

TE
04

/23
/21

SC
HE

MA
TI

C
DE

SI
GN

 R
EV

IE
W

06
/02

/21
RE

ZO
NI

NG

SC
A

LE
: 1

"=
10

'-0
"

SI
T
E
 P

LA
N

01

A
.10

1

C
O

N
C
E
PT

U
A

L
SI

T
E
 P

LA
N

N



EX
IS

TI
N

G
PA

VE
M

EN
T

C
O

N
TO

U
R

S 
FR

O
M

 G
IS

 S
U

R
VE

Y
H

AV
E 

N
O

T 
BE

EN
 C

O
N

FI
R

M
ED

22.15'

20.11'

18.62'

26.18'

26.24'

22.73'

C
O

M
M

O
N

 P
AR

KI
N

G
ST

O
R

M
 W

AT
ER

 M
G

T 
AR

EA

PE
R

VI
O

U
S 

PA
VE

R
S

44
.6

4'
21

.3
3'

21
.3

3'
21

.3
3'

30
.8

'
11

1.
9'

20
' S

ET
BA

C
K

12
' S

ET
BA

C
K 

FR
O

M
ED

G
E 

O
F 

PA
VE

M
EN

T

5'
 S

ID
EW

AL
K

3'
 G

R
AS

S 
ST

R
IP

R1
5'

R15'

45
.8

'

21
.4

'
21

.3
8'

21
.3

6'
35

.5
2

8'
 P

R
IV

AC
Y 

FE
N

C
E

10' BUFFER WITH FENCE

BE
LW

O
O

D
 D

R

BELW
OOD D

R

8'
 P

R
IV

AC
Y

FE
N

C
E

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X X X X X X X X X

D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

 F
AC

IL
IT

Y
75

 L
F 

O
F 

30
" S

TO
R

M
 P

IP
E.

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

ST
R

U
C

TU
R

E

15
" R

C
P 

D
IS

C
H

AR
G

E 
PI

PE
 R

EQ
'D

SL
O

PE
 P

AV
ED

 H
EA

D
W

AL
L

25
0' 

SI
GHT 

DIS
T 

NW

35
0' 

SI
GHT 

DIS
T 

SE

24
.0'

LO
T 

1
LO

T 
2

LO
T 

3
LO

T 
4

LO
T 

5

10
' B

U
FF

ER
 W

IT
H

 F
EN

C
E

40' ROW

D
R

AW
N

:

SC
AL

E:

SH
EE

T

.M
C

O
C

H
EC

KE
D

:

21
EL

M
01

D
AT

E:

JO
B 

N
O

:

FI
LE

 N
AM

E:
R

EZ
O

N
IN

G
 

3164 BELWOOD DR
VESTAVIA HILLS, AL

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALMTR
MTTR

ENGINEERS, INC.
CONSULTING ENGINEERS-LAND SURVEYORS
2500 SOUTHLAKE PARK, SUITE 100, HOOVER, AL 35244

TELEPHONE (205) 320-0114

SC
H

EM
AT

IC
 N

o.
 5

6/
1/

21

C
 1

SE
E 

PL
AN

C
O

M
PA

C
TE

D
 S

U
BG

R
AD

E

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
SI

D
EW

AL
K 

D
ET

AI
L 

( N
TS

 )

PE
 / 

LS
 N

o.
 1

70
54

M
TT

R
 E

N
G

IN
EE

R
S,

 IN
C

.
25

00
 S

O
U

TH
LA

KE
 P

AR
K,

 S
U

IT
E 

10
0,

 H
O

O
VE

R
, A

L 
35

24
4

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

(2
05

) 3
20

-0
11

4

EL
LI

O
T 

PI
KE

EL
M

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

, L
LC

41
00

 A
U

TU
M

N
 L

N
 #

10
4,

 V
ES

TA
VI

A 
H

IL
LS

, A
L 

35
24

3
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
(2

05
) 3

68
-3

10
9

JO
SE

PH
 A

. M
IL

LE
R

, I
II



T
IT

LE

20
5.
22

3.8
60

2
ch

ad
@

cm
br

ya
nt

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e.
co

m

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
IS

 T
HE

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
OF

C.
M.

BR
YA

NT
 A

RC
HI

TE
CT

UR
E,

 L
.L

.C
.

AN
D 

MA
Y 

NO
T 

BE
 R

EP
RO

DU
CE

D 
OR

 A
LT

ER
ED

W
IT

HO
UT

 P
ER

MI
SS

IO
N.

SH
E
E
T

D
A

T
E
S

03
/23

/21
CO

NC
EP

TU
AL

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
04

/02
/21

RE
VI

SE
D 

CO
NC

EP
T 

SI
TE

AN
D 

BU
ILD

IN
G

04
/04

/21
RE

VI
SE

D 
SI

TE
04

/23
/21

SC
HE

MA
TI

C
DE

SI
GN

 R
EV

IE
W

06
/02

/21
RE

ZO
NI

NG

SC
A

LE
: 1

/8
"=

1'-
0"

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 -
 M

A
IN

 L
E
V
E
L

01
A
.2
01

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

S
E
LE

V
A

T
IO

N

SC
A

LE
: 1

/8
"=

1'-
0"

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 -
 U

PP
E
R
 L

E
V
E
L

02

SC
A

LE
: 1

/8
"=

1'-
0"

FR
O

N
T
 E

LE
V
A

T
IO

N
03






	2021_0809CC_A
	Proclamation Senior Citizens Day  2021
	Proclamation Hike The Hills 2021
	Proclamation Day of Prayer 2021
	July 26 minutes
	Resolution 5337
	Ordinance 3025
	Resolution 5338
	Ordinance 3026
	Resolution 5339
	Ordinance 3027
	Ordinance 3028
	Resolution 5341
	Resolution 5342
	Resolution 5343
	Ordinance 3032
	Ordinance 3031
	Ordinance 3030



